
RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
 

Thursday, October 25, 2012 
5:00 P.M. to 7:00 P.M. 

Sausalito City Council Chambers    420 Litho Street     Sausalito, CA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT IS INVITED CONCERNING EACH AGENDIZED ITEM PURSUANT TO THE 
BROWN ACT.  PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

 
AGENDA 

 
5:00 PM -  CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL 
 

1. Minutes of August 16, 2012 Meeting  
 
2. Review report of Harbor Administrator  

 
3. Approval of prior expenditures for August 10  – October 10, 2012 

 
4. Acceptance of FY 2009-10 and 2010-11 fiscal audit prepared by Maher Accountancy 

 
5. Discuss and Approve Resolution 13-4:  Application for Department of Boating and 

Waterway grant funding for $30K to maintain and operate “Waste Aweigh” sewage 
pump-out vessel for three years 
 

6. America’s Cup update 
 

7. TMDL update 
a. Water quality test results 

 
8. Public comments invited concerning items NOT on this Agenda (3-minute limit) 

 
9. Staff comments 

 
10. Board member matters 

 
NEXT MEETING:  Tentatively planned for December 20, 2012.  Board members please 
review your calendars and advise Staff as to your availability. 

 
A COMPLETE AGENDA PACKET IS AVAILABLE FOR VIEWING ON THE RBRA WEBSITE 
http://rbra.ca.gov  , AND AT THE SAUSALITO CITY LIBRARY.  
  
TO RECEIVE AN ELECTRONIC MEETING NOTICE, PLEASE EMAIL REQUEST TO DON ALLEE AT 
dallee@co.marin.ca.us 
 

Marin County Community Development Agency, 3501 Civic Center Dr. Room 308, San Rafael, CA  94903 
Office 415/289-4143 Cell 415/971-3919  bprice@co.marin.ca.us 



 



02_Clerk 102512 mem.doc 

RICHARDSON’S  BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
October 19, 2012 
 
TO:  RBRA Board  
 
FROM: Ben Berto, RBRA Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: October meeting  
 
 
Board members: 
 
The agenda is fairly straightforward.  The Board is asked to approve a $30,000 grant (half 
of the $60K originally anticipated) for the vessel pumpout program, and to re-accept the 
audit for Fiscal Years 2009-10 and 2010-11.  Staff will provide an update on the current 
status of the State-imposed Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) plan.  
 
Staff completed and submitted RBRA’s $495,000 grant application to CalRecycle, and 
hope to hear back soon whether or not we were successful.  Staff believes there is a good 
chance we will receive the grant.   
 
Plenty of credit is due to Staff that worked on the grant application, including  Bill Price, 
Leslie Alden-aide to Boardmember Sears, and Adrienne Klein from BCDC.  The 
CalRecycle staff was also very helpful in assisting with their new and challenging online 
application process.   
 
If awarded, the grant will definitely assist the RBRA in achieving the Board’s desire to 
abate “low-hanging fruit” abandoned, derelict vessels in Richardson’s Bay.  It will more 
than double our current vessel abatement budget over the three years of the grant.  It will 
also enable the RBRA to overcome potentially budget-wrecking events such as a large, 
commercial vessel having to be demolished, a large storm resulting in numerous vessels 
to be disposed of (which we were fortunate to avoid last winter), or anticipated vessel 
abatement efforts elsewhere in SF Bay sending an influx of displaced vessels to our 
anchorage (more details to be provided in the Harbormaster’s oral report). 
 
The task of meaningful and sustainable long-term management of vessels in various 
condition and ownerships is only beginning.  Enhancing RBRA’s vessel management 
capabilities will be an important step in effectively addressing current and future vessel-
related issues.  Many challenges remain en route to a more comprehensively managed 
anchorage.  The attached articles illustrate how widely perspectives can differ on 
anchorage issues.   
 
Staff is asking the Board to formally accept the Maher audit report for FY’s 2009-10 and 
2010-11.  Since this has already been reviewed in a public hearing and that hearing 
closed, no further public hearing is necessary on this item. 
 



 1

 
RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 16, 2012 
HELD AT SAUSALITO CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chair Ken Wachtel; (Mill Valley); Emmett O’Donnell 
(Tiburon); Jerry Butler (Belvedere); Kate Sears (Marin County); Herb Weiner (alternate 
– Sausalito) 
 
ABSENT:   Jonathan Leone (Sausalito) 
 
STAFF:  Bill Price (Harbor Administrator); Ben Berto (RBRA Clerk) 
 
Meeting called to order at 5:40 PM  
 
Adjourn to Closed Session.   
Conference with legal counsel regarding anticipated or significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9: one (1) potential case.   
 
No reportable actions were taken and direction was provided to Staff. 
 
Re-Adjourn at 6:55 
 
Minutes of June 2012 RBRA meeting  
Minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
Review report of Harbor Administrator 
Mr. Price reported on the vessel disposal fees for a 65’ powerboat “Amazing Grace”.  
Member Cromwell pointed out the contractor costs seemed to be 3 times as high as an 
RBRA disposal.  Mr. Price noted that for safety reasons RBRA has to use contractors for 
larger vessels, and such a cost differential is fairly typical between in-house and 
contracted disposal.   
 
Mr. Price also noted that Sausalito PD was utilizing the RBRA patrol vessel quite a bit 
due to the shallow water capabilities, and the expenses were still being shared.  Member 
Sears asked about the US Coast Guard red-tagging vessels.  Mr. Price reported that 
efforts were occurring but did not lead to much follow up.  However, the vessels were 
entered into their data base and future action might be possible. 
 
Prior expenditures 
The expenditure report was accepted unanimously. 
 
Discuss and approve Resolutions 13-1 and 13-2 accepting funding from the State 
Department of Boating and Waterways for vessel removal operations.  
After a brief description of the VTIP and AWAF programs, both Resolutions were 
approved unanimously.  Mr. Price noted the more widespread requests for funding  as the 
reason for the grants’ reduced amounts from the RBRA’s original requests, and explained 



 2

that some of that shortfall would be recovered since the 10% match requirement can be 
attained through in-kind contributions. 
 
Discuss and approve Resolution 13-3 authorizing the application to CalRecycle for 
grant funding of $495K to augment derelict vessel removal operations over the next 
three years. 
The CalRecycle grant program and pending RBRA application were described by Mr. 
Berto, and the Resolution was approved unanimously. 
 
America’s Cup Update 
Mr. Berto informed the Board that the AC45 races had been conducted, and the impacts 
on Richardson’s Bay were negligible.  He recognized that the main event - the America’s 
Cup in the summer of 2013 - would pose a different level of impact, and said that Staff 
was preparing for it accordingly. 
 
Public Comments 
None 
 
Staff Comments 
Mr. Price invited the Board to participate in the Cass Gidley Marina clean-up day to be 
held on September 8th in Sausalito. 
 
Board Member Matters 
None 
 
The meeting was adjourned to closed session at 7:20 PM.   
 
NOTE: The next meeting of the RBRA is tentatively scheduled for October 25, 2012 at 
5:30 PM at the Sausalito City Hall Chambers.    



 
RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 

 
HARBOR ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT                                           October 12, 2012 
 
WORKING RELATIONSHIPS 
• Dept. of Boating and Waterways – 1) The pump-out boat Operations and Maintenance 

grant is being finalized and will provide $30K to be used over two years.  This is a 50% 
reduction from prior years and is due to the recent merger of Department of Boating with 
State Parks and Recreation. 

• US Coast Guard – Met with the Abandoned Vessels group on 8/10 to discuss regional 
issues and explore vessel removal through new regulations adopted through the State Lands 
Commission.  Task force approach is being considered for Oakland Estuary, with funding 
provided by CalRecycle  

• Sausalito Public Works – Cleared the Cass Gidley marina of debris, boats and emptied all 
out buildings with probation crew. 

• Cal Recycle – The grant application for Cal Recycling funding was submitted and it is in 
review.  Preliminary discussions with their staff make it appear that it has a high likelihood 
of approval. 

 
DEBRIS REMOVAL 
• Disposed of 9 vessels.  One was another 65’ powerboat.  3 vessels are currently awaiting 

demolition. 
• 2 boats are currently impounded 
• Beach clean-up efforts ongoing using Marin Co. Community Service volunteers. 
 
RAPID RESPONSE 
• Recovered 2 powerboats, a dock section and a skiff from Belvedere shoreline.  Went out on 

two occasions to rescue vessels but owners had already secured the problem. 
 
WATER QUALITY 
• Finished up water testing for Fall 2012.  Preliminary results are very good and the State 

Water Board is pleased with the improvements being tracked. 
• Gearing up for the closure of Marin County labs, where our samples have been tested.  They 

will remain open through the winter test regimen.  It is expected that costs for sample testing 
will rise in the next fiscal year.  Researching the possibility of contracting with other labs in 
order to keep costs down and send samples closer than Fairfield 

 
OTHER 
• Attended the annual California Association of Harbor Masters and Port Captains conference 

and trade show in Long Beach to meet with colleagues and Department of Boating staff in 
classes and discussions on harbor related issues. 

• Completed the intermediate marina management course conducted by International Marina 
Institute 



 Richardson's Bay Regional Agency

Vessel Disposal List         August - October 2012

Date Name Type Amount

8/18/2012 Furious 36' wooden powerboat 980.00 abandoned - sunk - AWAF
8/18/2012 Sea Ray 28' f/g powerboat 3748.00 abandoned - sunk - AWAF
9/14/2012 Cass sailboat 19' f/g sailboat 500.00 abandoned * - AWAF
9/30/2012 De Pta Madre 26' f/g powerboat 850.00 abandoned * - AWAF
9/30/2012 Sea Note 31' f/g powerboat 950.00 abandoned * - AWAF
9/30/2012 Smooth Operator 26' f/g powerboat 1200.00 abandoned * - AWAF
9/30/2012 Big Bleu 26' f/g powerboat 950.00 abandoned * - AWAF
10/6/2012 Marin Isle 27' wooden sailboat 2200.00 abandoned *- beached - AWAF
10/17/2012 Canta Mar 66' wooden powerboat 18000.00 abandoned * - AWAF

9 vessels total 29378.00
* indicates estimated invoices

 Page 1 of 1



RBRA-FY 2012/13  - August 10 - October 10, 2012 BALANCE SHEET

COST ELEMENT DESCRIPTION EXPENSES REVENUES
Com Srvc - Broadband AT&T  - internet 92.65
Com Srvc - Broadband Earthlink - internet 7.90
Trav - Parking Parking in SF for meeting 21.00
Postage Fed Ex 13.17
Postage Post Office 20.80
Oth Maintenance West Marine 26.63
Oth Maintenance West Marine 285.16
Rent  - Off Space Schoonmaker Point marina - slip rental 276.12
Rent  - Off Space Schoonmaker Point marina - slip rental 147.50
Rent  - Off Space Libertyship Dry Storage 240.00
HazMat Clean Up Bay Cities Refuse Service - debris boxes 1,024.65
Rent  - Equip Rental Hertz - backhoe rental 573.32
Professional Services Diego Towing - bring large vessel up ramp 375.00
HazMat Clean Up Bay Cities Refuse Service - debris boxes 1,050.25
Rent  - Off Space ICB Building - office rental 420.00
Professional Services MT Head - waste pump out 425.00
Professional Services Parker Diving - midnight tow of 60' vessel 1,580.00
Com Srvc - Cell Phon AT&T - mobile service 78.66
Rent  - Equip Rental Hertz - backhoe rental 526.01
Professional Services Alexander - website services 310.00
Professional Services Fleshman - day labor 225.00
Bldgs & Grounds Rent Mooring rental -150.00
Bldgs & Grounds Rent Mooring rental -300.00
Bldgs & Grounds Rent Mooring rental -150.00
Bldgs & Grounds Rent Mooring rental -150.00
Professional Services Wedlock Surveys - vessel survey 235.00
Professional Services Wedlock Surveys - vessel survey 235.00
Professional Services Fleshman - day labor 200.00
Mitigation Grant Waldo Point Harbor - Gates Harbor settlement -50,000.00
Com Srvc - Broadband AT&T  - internet 97.54
Com Srvc - Broadband Earthlink - internet 7.90
Rent  - Off Space Clipper Yacht Harbor 29.40
Trav-Meals Saylor's Landing - volunteer lunch 19.44
Trav - Parking Parking in SF for meeting 17.50
Printing Supplies Office Depot 9.20
Oth Maintenance West Marine 77.75
Oth Maintenance Home Depot 21.67
Maint & Rep Su - Oth Hirshfeld - patrol vessel repair 293.07
Oil & Gas Outside Chevron - patrol vessel fuel 80.00
Oil & Gas Outside Shell - chainsaw fuel 16.95
Rent  - Equip Rental Hertz - backhoe rental 545.40
Professional Services Fleshman - day labor 212.50
Memberships & Dues Harbor Masters and Port Captain - annual dues 300.00
Rent  - Off Space Libertyship Dry Storage 240.00
Rent  - Off Space Schoonmaker Point marina - slip rental 160.00
Rent  - Off Space Schoonmaker Point marina - slip rental 550.80
City Contribution City of Belvedere member dues -17,960.00
Ins - Gen Liability Alliant - annual SLIP Insurance 13,735.43



ProfServ–CntySalRe Salary costs 10,454.30
Professional Services MT Head - waste pump out 425.00
Rent  - Off Space ICB Building - office rental 420.00
Com Srvc - Cell Phon AT&T - mobile service 85.14
Professional Services Fleshman - day labor 150.00
State - Grant Accounts Receivable-Government Agencies 134.20
Bldgs & Grounds Rent Mooring rental -150.00
Sales and Services Mooring rental -150.00
Sales and Services Sale of used outboard motor -1,800.00
HazMat Clean Up Bay Cities Refuse Service - debris boxes 950.70
Professional Services Fleshman - day labor 137.50
ProfServ–CntySalRe Salary costs 10,454.30

-70,810.00
48,014.51



 
Percent of Budget and Percent of Year as of October 11, 2012 

 
 

 
 

Expenditures vs. Budgeted Expenditures 
 
Expenditures   $  79,270 
Adopted Budget   $373,373 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Realized Revenue vs. Budgeted Revenue 
 
Realized Revenue   $292,638 
Budgeted Revenue   $374,080 

 



 
 
RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 13-04 

OF THE RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 

REQUESTING A GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $ 30,000.00 FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF 
BOATING AND WATERWAYS FOR THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF A 

BOAT PUMP-OUT VESSEL AT RICHARDSON’S BAY, MARIN COUNTY 

WHEREAS, desirous of increasing and improving the boaters facilities, the Richardson’s 
Bay Regional Agency is operating and maintaining a pump-out vessel to meet the needs of the 
boaters and to provide public access to this facility; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Boating and Waterways is authorized to provide grants to 
cities, counties, districts, and other public agencies for the operating and maintenance of pump-out 
vessel facilities;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency by 
adoption of this resolution hereby requests that the Department of Boating and Waterways provide 
a grant for the purpose of operating and maintaining a pump-out vessel at Richardson’s Bay, 
County of Marin; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency agrees to 
accept the grant and hereby authorizes their representative Bill Price, Harbor Administrator for the 
RBRA, to sign the grant agreement and accept the grant for the purpose stated above.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of the Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency on 
October 25, 2012 by the following vote:  

Ayes:  

Noes:  

Absent:  

CERTIFICATION:            

Kenneth Wachtel, Board Chair  Ben Berto, Clerk, RBRA  

   

 



1 
 

RICHARDSON’S  BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
October 19, 2012 
 
TO:  RBRA Board  
 
FROM: Ben Berto, RBRA Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Total Maximum Daily Load status  
 
Staff just completed compiling the results of this current dry season’s water quality 
testing (see attached).  The results are the best Staff has seen since water quality testing 
was initiated.  However, caution should be exercised in reading too much into one year’s 
water quality results.  For example, unusually there was no measurable precipitation 
during the test period, which helped quality results due to minimal infiltration and inflow 
from storm drains emptying into Richardson’s Bay.  Daytime temperatures were also 
moderate.  Waldo Gates not surprisingly posted the only exceedance. 
 
RBRA has two related programs implementing our responsibilities for the State Regional 
Water Quality Control Board’s mandated Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) plan for 
Richardson’s Bay: the TMDL Local Implementation Plan (dated September 17, 2009), 
and the Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency and County of Marin Houseboat Marina 
Program (undated but approved by the RBRA Board on December 15, 2011 - see 
attached for both). 
 
The following briefly goes down the list of local adoption items. 
 
TMDL Local Implementation Plan 
 
Water quality testing – RBRA has, as noted above, continued to provide both dry- and 
wet-season water quality testing at its own expense, something that could double next 
fiscal year with the pending closure of Marin County’s labs. 
 
Anchor-out vessels pumpout participation – While RBRA has set a goal of 100% 
participation in the MT Head pumpout program, the 50% or so participation achieved to 
date is probably a more realistic attainment level given the disorganized nature of both 
vessels in the anchorage, and the alternative (but satisfactory) methods used by some of 
the individuals living on those vessels.  Staff continues to encourage participation, and 
notes that higher pumpout participation rates would be much more easily achieved if 
vessels were on moorings. 
 
Marina neighborhood watch – A watch program is in effect, with positive results in terms 
of  reported leaks (a rare occurance).  
 
Marina pumpout participation – To staff’s knowledge virtually all liveaboard vessels in 
marinas receive pumpout service. 



2 
 

 
Marina sewage pumpout facilities – One marina has secured pumpout facilities, one 
marina has been non-responsive to inquiries, and another marina may be a questionable 
investment due to its currently dilapidated condition.  It should be noted that the primary 
customer for such pumpout facilities is the MT Head pumpout vessel. 
 
California Certified Clean Marina – the Harbormaster has been working with marinas to 
achieve this certification. 
 
Waldo-Gates marina upgrades – After decades in the making, work is finally starting on 
the Waldo Point Reconfiguration Project, which includes sewer line upgrades. 
 
Marina implementation of TMDL-related measures – See Houseboat Marina Program 
discussion following. 
 
Houseboat Marina Program 
 
The program was developed by Marin County Environmental Health Services (EHS)  in 
conjunction with RBRA, and contains the following recommendations: 
 

Inspection 
• Encourage harbormasters to schedule regular inspections of their dock’s 

sewage collection system. The mainline sewage tank and pump should be 
visually inspected, cleaned, and repaired (as necessary) annually.  Records of 
the inspections, findings and action should be maintained, and submitted 
annually to RBRA/County EHS.   

• Encourage dock residents to promptly report leaks to harbormasters.  
RBRA/County EHS will assist in the event of a delay in response/resolution. 

• Sewage collection system inspections should be performed after 
earthquake/tsunami events as these tend to affect the integrity of the joints. 

• Record inspections and document leaks//repairs/other issues in incident 
reports.  Include in annual report to RBRA/County EHS. 

• A complete system evaluation should be performed as part of a houseboat 
marina Use Permit renewal, to assess the integrity of the system components.  
This should include any system components from the houseboat hull to the 
shore side pump stations. 

• External ejector or grinder pump configurations (those mounted on the 
outside of the houseboat hull) should be inspected periodically for integrity.  
Frequency of inspection should be determined based on previously 
demonstrated durability. 

 
Collection System Design and Configuration 

• All ejector or grinder pumps and holding tanks should be moved inside the 
hull of the houseboat if possible.  This should always occur at time of re-hull.   
Currently about  95% are stationed inside the hull of the houseboat. 

• The flexible hoses utilized for the laterals from the houseboat to dock 
transition should be scheduled for replacement on a periodic basis based on 
reasonable life expectancy considering the demands of the environment.   



3 
 

• All hard plumbing (holding tanks and hard piping) associated with the 
houseboat should be maintained completely above the water line at all times.   

 
Information Dissemination   

• Work in conjunction with Harbormasters and Floating Homes Association 
(FHA) to disseminate information concerning the Houseboat Marina 
Inspection Program to all houseboat residents.  An annual issue of the 
Floating Times (scheduled for printing in February 2012) should:  

o Outline best management practices for individual, onboard sewage 
systems,  

o Provide a phone tree for sewage emergencies specific to each marina 
and/or dock,  

o Describe the signs to look for when a leak is suspected. 
 
The majority of harbormasters conduct annual sewage system inspections and (if 
appropriate) maintenance.  This is sound management – an impaired or nonfunctional 
sewage system would cause all sorts of problems. 
 
EHS is working with RBRA Staff to develop a leak report form and should soon have a 
draft to present to harbormasters. 
 
All new houseboats feature internal ejector and grinder pumps. 
 
EHS and RBRA staff is working on developing and disseminating information including 
a phone tree emergency call list.   
 
Conclusion 
 
RBRA and EHS’s implementation of local TMDL programs is well underway.  Staff is 
confident that these programs are assisting with moving towards achieving the TMDL’s 
overall water quality objectives.  The Board will recall that the TMDL’s water quality 
goal for Richardson’s Bay is nearly the pristine shellfish consumption standard, a 
historical artifact curiously adopted by the State.  As can be seen from September’s water 
quality testing results, the much more relevant and practical water quality standards for 
water-contact recreation were achieved across the board for all testing periods and 
stations except Gates.  Staff will continue to periodically update the Board on TMDL-
related matters. 



30 Day Geo Mean
Total Coliform Not To Exceed 1000

E. coli Not to Exceed 126
Enterococcus Not to Exceed 35

WALDO POINT GATES COOP Station #41 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 1401 1780 1246 5797 3130 2240

E. coli 235 / 126 175 148 74 393 199 172
Enterococcus 104 / 35 51 10 10 120 10 23

KAPPAS HOUSEBOATS Station #43 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 591 0 2282 311 1086 1064

E. coli 235 / 126 52 145 160 63 41 79
Enterococcus 104 / 35 20 31 10 9 10 14

WALDO "A" DOCK Station #40 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 204 1211 323 193 820 417

E. coli 235 / 126 20 63 41 62 31 40
Enterococcus 104 / 35 10 9 9 86 10 15

WALDO POINT SOUTH 40 Station 15 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 145 1439 161 185 889 354

E. coli 235 / 126 41 31 20 132 223 60
Enterococcus 104 / 35 10 9 9 10 9 9

CLIPPER BASIN #4 Station 14 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 84 650 73 228 226 183

E. coli 235 / 126 10 30 31 41 63 30
Enterococcus 104 / 35 10 9 9 9 9 9

ARQUEZ MARINA Station #37 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 41 383 72 288 359 164

E. coli 235 / 126 9 20 10 9 20 13
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 9 9 9 9 9

CLIPPER BASIN #1, Station CB1 (NEW) 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 96 455 181 195 256 209

E. coli 235 / 126 36 9 10 10 9 12
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 9 20 9 9 11

SCHOONMAKER BEACH Station #33 (EHS) 29-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 12-Sep-12 26-Sep-12 3-Oct-12 19-Oct-09
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 373 63 771 20 85 125

E. coli 235 / 126 20 10 9 9 9 11
Enterococcus 104 / 35 10 10 9 9 10 10

SCHOONMAKER Station #32 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 9 554 9 9 246 40

E. coli 235 / 126 9 31 9 9 9 12
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 10 9 9 20 11

30 Day Geo Mean
Total Coliform Not To Exceed 1000

E. coli Not to Exceed 126
Enterococcus Not to Exceed 35

GALILEE / NAPA Station #8 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 120 420 158 9 216 109

E. coli 235 / 126 20 10 9 9 9 11
Fecal 400 / 200 4 2 13 4 11 5

Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 10 9 9 9 9

MARINEWAYS Station MW (NEW) 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 465 1130 197 379 759 495

E. coli 235 / 126 145 52 20 41 144 62

235
104

DRY SEASON
Single Sample

10,000

235
104

DRY SEASON
Single Sample

10,000



Enterococcus 104 / 35 41 20 10 9 20 17

PELICAN HARBOR Station #6 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 10 323 52 20 161 56

E. coli 235 / 126 10 10 9 9 10 10
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 9 9 9 9 9

SAUSALITO YACHT HARBOR Station #5 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 41 262 41 75 97 80

E. coli 235 / 126 20 9 10 31 9 14
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 9 9 9 10 9

SAUSALITO YACHT HARBOR Station #3 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 84 328 75 30 121 94

E. coli 235 / 126 9 10 9 9 30 12
Enterococcus 104 / 35 31 9 9 20 31 17

CONTROL STATION DAYMARK #6 Station C 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 10 259 9 9 20 21

E. coli 235 / 126 10 9 9 9 9 9
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 9 9 9 9 9

CONTROL O STRAWBERRY POINT 30-Aug-12 5-Sep-12 11-Sep-12 26-Sep-10 3-Oct-10 3-Oct-10
Total Coliform  10,000 / 1000 41 1381 51 52 97 108

E. coli 235 / 126 10 41 9 20 9 15
Enterococcus 104 / 35 9 10 9 9 9 9



  

1 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
 

TMDL Local Implementation Plan 
 

September 17, 2009 

 

Background: 

 

The California Regional Water Quality Control Board – San Francisco Bay Region (RWQCB) has 

tasked the Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency (RBRA) with developing a response to the 

RWQCB’s recently passed TMDL (Total Maximum Daily Load) Plan requirements for achieving 

water quality improvements in Richardson’s Bay.  The TMDL has assigned to the RBRA and 

several other local agencies water quality improvement-related responsibilities concerning anchored-

out vessels, houseboats, marinas, and water quality testing.  This document is RBRA’s 

Implementation Plan.   

 

Purpose: 
 

The purpose of RBRA’s TMDL Implementation Plan is to set forth RBRA program activities and 

timing consistent with RWQCB TMDL implementation measures, in furtherance of achieving 

compliance with the TMDL overall water quality objectives for Richardson’s Bay.  RBRA’s 

program responsibilities for multi-agency program activities are limited to those identified in this 

Plan as being performed by the RBRA. 

 

RBRA Implementation Plan Response: 
 

Commencing with adoption of this local Implementation Plan, and in full effect after the State Water 

Quality Control Board and USEPA adopt the final Basin Plan Amendment (anticipated for late 

2009), RBRA will implement the following: 

 

Water Quality Testing 

The RBRA will conduct water quality testing for Fecal Coliform, Total Coliform, Enterococcus, and 

E. Coli.  Water testing protocols will be multiple tube for Fecal Coliform and Total Coliform, and 

enzyme substrate for Enterococcus, Total Coliform, and E.Coli.  A total of 16 sites will be sampled 

and tested.  Tests will be performed on samples taken at each of the test sites at weekly intervals for 

five (5) consecutive weeks.  The five-week sample and test series will be conducted  once during the 

dry season and once during the winter, for a total of 10 tests at each of the test sites.  The test results 

will be reported to the RBRA and the RWQCB. 

Timeline:  Dry season testing in late summer (August-October) 2009, and wet season testing in 

Winter (January –March) 2010. 

 

Anchor-Out Vessels  

RBRA will pursue 100% participation in the MT Head pumpout program for live-aboard anchorout 

vessels, and will assist live-aboard vessel owners in obtaining marine sanitation devices (msd’s) with 

holding tanks, to be used in conjunction with the pumpout program.  State Pump-Out Grant 

assistance will be utilized to pay operating costs for pumping out the vessels and may pick up some, 

if not all, of the costs for setting up vessels with msd’s and holding tanks.   



  

2 

Timeline:  Initial implementation immediately, full compliance by Winter 2010 

 

Marina/Anchorouts 

Marina owners/operators, houseboat owners, and anchorouts will implement a “neighborhood 

watch” for sewage spills for both houseboat and recreational marinas, and anchorouts, with a hotline 

directed to first responders (EHS, RBRA, SASM, Southern Marin Sewage, etc.). 

Timeline:  Winter 2010 

 

Harbormasters will coordinate with RBRA to ensure 100% compliance with their pump-out 

programs for live-aboards. 

Timeline:  Winter 2010 

 

RBRA will work directly with the three marinas that do not have sewage pump-out facilities to assist 

them in achieving State grant funding to install infrastructure. 

Timeline:  Marina operators to submit grant applications by July 2010 

 

RBRA will work with all local marinas to assist their becoming certified California Clean Marinas. 

Timeline:  Ongoing, certification goal July 2011 

 

RBRA will continue to work with Gates Cooperative marina to repair and upgrade their system until 

the Waldo Point Reconfiguration Project is complete. 

Timeline:  Ongoing until project completion 

 

RBRA will work with local marinas to facilitate their development and activation of implementation 

measures required in the TMDL. 

Timeline:  July 2011 

 

Multi-Agency Plan Response 

 

A multi-agency approach will be used to satisfy certain TMDL implementation measure 

requirements.  RBRA Staff has met with representatives of the County of Marin Environmental 

Health Services (EHS) and Marin County Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program (MCSTOPPP), 

and received their preliminary commitment to participate in the multi-agency response in the 

following shared TMDL plan elements: 

 

EHS will take the lead in ensuring houseboats are tested on a biennial basis for sewage conveyance 

system integrity.  RBRA will facilitate meetings between the houseboat marina owners/operators, 

houseboat association representatives, and EHS.  The meetings will develop and implement 

procedure(s) for testing the sewage conveyance system of all houseboats in each houseboat marina. 

Timelines:  Immediately for initial implementation steps, full compliance estimated Winter 2010 

 

MCSTOPPP will conduct additional water quality testing associated with stormwater program 

responsibilities.  RBRA has agreed to conduct sampling on behalf of MCSTOPPP for the testing 

sites that relate to MCSTOPP program responsibilities.  

Timeline:  Dry season testing in late summer (August-October) 2009, and wet season testing in 

Winter 2010. 

 

RWQCB has offered to participate in water quality testing.  RBRA has not assigned any budget 

support amount from RWQCB.  If RWQCB can contribute, it will help defer some of RBRA’s 



  

3 

expenses.  RWQCB has also indicated it will provide water quality-related informational/educational 

materials, which RBRA will distribute to boaters and houseboat residents. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

1. Table 7-4  Trackable implementation measures for Richardson’s Bay pathogens TMDL 

(RWQCB, 07/09/08). 

2. Revised testing sites diagram 

 



 1

Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency and County of Marin 
Houseboat Marina Program 

 
Background 
 
There are approximately 420 houseboat residences (floating homes) in the unincorporated area of 
the County of Marin just north of the Sausalito city limits.  They are docked at four marinas that 
are separately owned, operated and maintained.  The marinas with the number of docks, 
houseboats, and pump/lift stations are listed below: 

• Commodore 1 dock 11 houseboats 1 pump/lift station 
• Kappas 3 docks 117 houseboats 2 pump/lift stations 
• Waldo Point  6 docks 270 houseboats 4 pump/lift stations 
• Yellow Ferry 1 dock 22 houseboats 1 pump/lift station 
• TOTALS 11 docks 420 houseboats 8 pump/lift stations 

 
The four marinas are comprised of eleven individual docks.  Nine of the eleven docks are on 
pilings and fixed, therefore not subject to tidal influence.  Two of the eleven docks, Commodore 
(11 houseboat residences) and Waldo Point “the Gates” (37 houseboat residences), are floating 
docks subject to tidal actions.  Waldo Point the Gates is currently in design review with a 
planned total rebuild as a fixed pier.    
 
Each marina provides sewerage, potable water, gas, electric, cable TV/computer, telephone and 
fire suppression service to the houseboat residences in much the same way as is provided to land 
side residences.  There are significant differences in the sewage collection system for the 
houseboat communities compared to land based systems.   

1. The collection systems are suspended beneath the dock/pier and are exposed, accessible, 
and generally visible from the houseboat to where the system goes underground at the 
transition to shoreline. 

2. The collection system for the houseboat communities from the point of discharge at the 
houseboat to entry into the underground pump stations are under pressure created by the 
ejector and grinder pumps used to pump wastewater from each individual houseboat.    

 
 
Houseboat Marina Sewage Collection System Design Components 
 
Each floating home has a fully enclosed holding tank with an ejector or grinder pump within the 
tank to deliver the houseboat’s wastewater up to the main sewer line which is suspended under 
the dock.  The holding tank and ejector/grinder pump configurations are either mounted on the 
inside or outside of the floating home hull.  The mounting of holding tanks and ejector pumps 
appears to be evenly distributed on the inside and outside of the houseboat hull throughout the 
marinas.  
 
Wastewater delivery from the houseboat to the dock main is accomplished through a flexible 
1½” to 2” hose termed a “lateral”.  This lateral connects the houseboat wastewater holding tank 
to the main sewer line.  The lateral is suspended between the holding tank and the dock sewer 
main and allows for houseboat movement due to tidal action.  Where there is a fixed pier, the 
laterals generally are hung such that they are completely out of the water at low tide, and 



 2

partially submerged during high tides.  The laterals for the two floating docks are generally 
submerged at all times except for the two connecting ends.   
 
There are two check valves between each houseboat ejector pump and dock main line to prevent 
wastewater from flowing back to the houseboat when the ejector pump has stopped pumping.  
One check valve is located at the ejector pump and one check valve is located where the lateral 
enters the main sewer line under the dock. 
 
The sewer main of the sewage collection system is PVC pipe suspended beneath the main dock 
above the water.  The sizing of the main line is based on the length of run of the main as well as 
the number of houseboats connected.  For example, Waldo Point has one main that increases in 
diameter from 2” to 2 ½” to 3” to 4” before reaching shore.   
 
The sewer mains proceed underground upon reaching shore and terminate at pump stations.  
These stations have two pumps (generally 5 horsepower each) which alternate duty via float 
switches in the tank.  There are audible and/or visual malfunction alerts for both high and low 
water conditions in the holding tanks.  If one pump fails, the other pump assumes total duty and 
the alarms are activated.  In the event both pumps fail, there is an overflow tank that provides 
emergency capacity.  If repairs cannot be made quickly and overflows are imminent, the holding 
tanks can be manually pumped by a service provider. 
 
Sewage from the houseboat marina pump/lift stations is pumped directly to the Sausalito - Marin 
City Sanitation District’s (SMCSD) sewage collection system.  Sewage collection, treatment and 
disposal are provided by SMCSD.  
 
The maintenance and operation of the system components as well as wastewater management 
from the houseboat to the marina dock sewer main are the responsibility of the houseboat owner.  
The responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the sewer main from the dock to and 
including the pump/lift stations is that of the marina owner.  The sewage collection system 
beyond the marina pump/lift stations is the responsibility of SMCSD. 
 
 
Houseboat Marina Sewage Collection System Procedures 
 
The four houseboat marina collection systems are all very similar in design.  As a result, the 
approach taken by marina operators for sewage collection system oversight, management and 
maintenance are essentially the same.   
 
All system lines are under some pressure at all times.  This makes detection of any leaks or 
compromises in the system easily recognized both visually and audibly by anyone in reasonably 
close proximity.   
 
Preventative inspections tend to be minimal due to the close proximity of full time residents and 
ease of problem detection.  Because the underside of the marina piers also carries fire 
suppression, gas, electrical, water, cable TV, and telephone lines, there is frequent work under 
the dock with opportunity to observe the sewage collection system.  Additionally, there are 
annual inspections required of both the gas lines as well as the fire suppression system.  Marina 



 3

staff participates in these inspections which provide opportunities to visually survey the sewage 
disposal network. 
 
In the event a component belonging to a homeowner fails, the homeowner is notified to arrange 
for immediate repairs.  Water supply is turned off to the houseboat and actions necessary to 
prevent and eliminate effluent flow into the bay are taken immediately.  If the resident is out of 
town or the item in need of repair is difficult to access by boat, the marina staff will at a 
minimum turn off water to the houseboat to ensure there is no leakage into the bay.  In some 
cases marina staff will perform the repair and bill the homeowner. 
 
A written maintenance log is maintained by the marina maintenance personnel to track any 
known repair to any component of sewer related infrastructure whether performed by a 
homeowner, marina maintenance staff or outside contractors. 
 
The marina pump/lift stations have regularly scheduled preventative maintenance and any 
necessary repairs by a plumbing contractor.  Each marina maintains parts and supplies on-site to 
handle the majority potential failures.  Again, any system related repairs that are performed are 
logged. 
 
 
Observations 
 
The majority of the sewage collection system is entirely above water, suspended beneath the 
piers and therefore exposed and easily accessible.  On the stationary fixed piers, it is only the 
laterals from the main line to the houseboat that dip below the water level as tidal cycles to high 
tide.  The sewer laterals from the houseboat home to the main are suspended so they are out of 
the water during low tides.  Laterals that connect a houseboat to a floating dock main line tend to 
be submerged at all times.  In these cases the connections to the houseboat holding tank and the 
dock main are above the water level.  In all circumstances, the systems are accessible, and 
generally visible from the houseboat to where the sewer main goes underground at the transition 
to shore.   
 
The systems are under pressure and suspended above the water making detection of any leaks or 
compromises in the system easily recognized both visually and audibly.  Houseboat residents 
interviewed said that they are very aware of unusual dripping or hissing sounds that might 
indicate a leak.  They also said they can smell the sewage if there is a leak.  The residents access 
their homes by walking in close proximity to (sometimes directly above) the sewage collection 
lines which can be perceived to be to a passive inspection. 
 
Most of the daily sewer system use is conducted during two time periods.  Waldo Points pump 
stations records show that 80% of pumping occurs from 7 am to 10 am, and 18% occurs from 5 
pm to 7 pm.  These are times when it would be expected that there would also be more resident 
activity on the docks. 
 
There are three major storm water outfalls in the area of the four houseboat marinas.  From south 
to north they are: 
 
 



 4

• 48” outfall at Waldo Point “C” Dock 
• Drainage channel at Kappas Gate 6 ½ - this channel connects with a pond west of 

Highway 101 next to the Marin City Shopping Center 
• Drainage channel north of Commodore located east of Highway 101 at the intersection at 

Highway 1. 
 
It is unclear at this time if there is a regular water flow from these locations throughout the year.   
Additionally, there is a 6’X6’ vault just south of Waldo Point “E” Dock at the city limits of 
Sausalito.  Waldo Point staff believes this is also some sort of storm drain facility.  There are also 
numerous small drainage features in the parking areas along the length of the houseboat marina 
properties. 
 
It is almost certain that the discharge from the three major storm water outfalls must impact 
water quality during rain events.  These outfalls may also contribute throughout the year 
depending on flow and watershed water quality.  The water quality at these outfalls should be 
assessed through water testing throughout the year. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
Overall, current oversight and response practices are good and relatively consistent throughout 
the houseboat communities.  However, additional community education providing a higher level 
of community awareness along with more active community participation would provide for a 
more comprehensive and responsive program.  Additionally, a few collection system design and 
configuration changes would provide for a more visible system for easier inspection and leak 
detection with less exposure to possible failures.  Following are the recommended program 
elements: 
 
Inspection 

• Encourage harbormasters to schedule regular inspections of their dock’s sewage 
collection system. The mainline sewage tank and pump should be visually inspected, 
cleaned, and repaired (as necessary) annually.  Records of the inspections, findings and 
action should be maintained, and submitted annually to RBRA/County EHS.   

• Encourage dock residents to promptly report leaks to harbormasters.  RBRA/County EHS 
will assist in the event of a delay in response/resolution. 

• Sewage collection system inspections should be performed after earthquake/tsunami 
events as these tend to affect the integrity of the joints. 

• Record inspections and document leaks//repairs/other issues in incident reports.  Include 
in annual report to RBRA/County EHS. 

• A complete system evaluation should be performed as part of a houseboat marina Use 
Permit renewal, to assess the integrity of the system components.  This should include 
any system components from the houseboat hull to the shore side pump stations. 

• External ejector or grinder pump configurations (those mounted on the outside of the 
houseboat hull) should be inspected periodically for integrity.  Frequency of inspection 
should be determined based on previously demonstrated durability. 

 
 
 



 5

Collection System Design and Configuration 
• All ejector or grinder pumps and holding tanks should be moved inside the hull of the 

houseboat if possible.  This should always occur at time of re-hull.   Currently about  
95% are stationed inside the hull of the houseboat. 

• The flexible hoses utilized for the laterals from the houseboat to dock transition should be 
scheduled for replacement on a periodic basis based on reasonable life expectancy 
considering the demands of the environment.   

• All hard plumbing (holding tanks and hard piping) associated with the houseboat should 
be maintained completely above the water line at all times.   

 
Information Dissemination   

• Work in conjunction with Harbormasters and Floating Homes Association (FHA) to 
disseminate information concerning the Houseboat Marina Inspection Program to all 
houseboat residents.  An annual issue of the Floating Times (scheduled for printing in 
February 2012) should:  

o Outline best management practices for individual, onboard sewage systems,  
o Provide a phone tree for sewage emergencies specific to each marina and/or dock,  
o Describe the signs to look for when a leak is suspected. 

 
 
Recommendations for responsible agencies 
 
Storm Drain and Water Runoff  
 

• Identify all major runoff discharge locations and test water quality regularly at different 
times of the year. 

• Identify all localized area drainage facilities (shore side parking lots, etc.) and assess their 
impact on water quality. 

• Based on findings, consider corrective actions to mitigate any negative impacts.  
 
 
Submitted by: 
Robert Turner 
County of Marin 
Environmental Health Services Project Manager 
 
Enclosures: 
 
Commodore Marina Sewer System (system description and marina management protocol) 
Richardson Bay & Kappas Houseboat Marina (system description and marina management protocol) 
City of Sausalito Sewer Ejection Systems – Yearly Maintenance Program 
Sewage Ejector Pump information 
County Code 
Dock List (AP #’s & Addresses) 
Aerial Photos (details include Dock Names, Pump Station & Storm Water Outfall locations) 
 
 

Houseboat Marina Program 121911 fnl.doc 





 



 



 



 














